
Page 1 of 3 
 

Milton Selectboard Meeting 
July 6, 2015 at 6 p.m. 

Community Room of the Municipal Complex 
43 Bombardier Rd., Milton, VT 05468 

 
Use of cell phones is prohibited during the meeting. Please shut them off or silence them. 
 

AGENDA 
I. Call to Order 

 
II. Flag Salute 

 
III. Agenda Review 

 
IV. Public Forum 

The  Public Forum will be limited to five minutes per person.  All participants must 
sign in and clearly state their name.  No action will be taken on items raised until a 
subsequent meeting (if action is needed by the Selectboard). 

 
V. Public Hearing (continued) under Interim Zoning Conditional Use Application 37 

Centre Drive-Gordon and Margaret Gilbert, Owners/Applicants.       
      The Applicants are requesting Interim Zoning Conditional Use approval from the 
      Selectboard according to the effective Interim  Zoning Bylaw for a proposed 5’ x 60’  
      new public warehousing (self-storage) building located at 37 Centre Drive,  
      described as SPAN# 11286, Tax Map 27, Parcel 9-14.  
      The property contains six existing storage buildings and a carport. The subject 
      property contains a total of 1.49 acres and is located within the “Downtown  
      Business (DB1)” Zoning District. 
      Motion Requested: to approve the conditional use subject to the following  
      conditions:   

1. Applicant shall receive all necessary approvals from the Development Review  
Board before the Administrative Officer may issue a zoning permit.  

2. Applicant shall obtain a zoning permit before commencing any land 
development on the subject property.  If the following proposed condition is 
met, the proposed development will not result in an undue adverse effect on all 
other Town ordinances.  

                    3. Applicant shall receive all other applicable Town approvals and/or permits.  
 
VI. Announcement and contract ratification for the new Town Manager. 

Stuart King, Selectboard Vice-Chair. 
Motion requested: To approve the contract for the new Town Manager, effective 
July 20, 2015. 



Page 2 of 3 
 

VII. Appointments and reappointments to various Town Boards, Committees and 
Commissions. 
Motions Requested: To appoint Courtney Lamdin to the Economic Development 
Commission for a 3 year term ending in 2018, 
 
To appoint David Conley to the Development Review Board for a 3 year term ending 
in 2018.  
 
To appoint Lori Donna to the Planning Commission for a 4 year term ending in 
2019.  
 

                  Paul Bohne, Interim Town Manager and staff 
 
VIII. New Business and Department Items 
 

A) FY 2015 preliminary year end budget status 
 

Interim Town Manager and Joanne Davis, Finance Director  
 

IX. Application of various restricted funds for related uses 
Motions Requested: to approve expending a fund in the amount of $5,783 
restricted for “Milton Village Fire Department Equipment Fund” for a thermal 
imaging camera, 
to approve expending a fund in the amount of $526 restricted from the Riley Fund 
for a thermal imaging camera, 
to approve expending $1,184.27 restricted as “Reserve Rescue” for a scoop 
stretcher and full body splint as a result of an upcoming change to the state EMS 
protocols.  
to approve expending $71,474.34 assigned for “Emergency Medical Services” for 
the ambulance conversion. 

 
X. Removal of the Designation for the Health Insurance Stabilization Fund 

Motion Requested: to remove the Health Insurance Stabilization Fund as a 
component of the designated fund balance so that it will be considered part of the 
Town’s unassigned fund balance. 
 

XI. Old Business 
 
A) Contracts between the Town of Milton and Sun Edison for installation of  

solar projects at the Wastewater Treatment Plant property and the former 
Town landfill. 
Motion Requested: to consider authorizing the Town Manager or Town 
Attorney to execute Options to Lease portions of the Wastewater Treatment 
Plant and former Town landfill properties to Sun Edison for the proposed 
installation of solar fields at those two properties, Leases on the same two 
properties, the Net Metering contract and any permits necessary to carry out 



Page 3 of 3 
 

the project on behalf of the Town after final review of agreements is complete 
by Town Attorney.  
Paul Bohne, Interim Town Manager and Joseph McLean, Town Attorney. 
 

XII. Reconsideration 
 
XIII. Manager’s Report  

 
XIV. Potential and/or Future Agenda Items 

 
XV. Minutes of  the Selectboard Meeting of June15, 2015 and of the special 

Selectboard meeting of June 23, 2015 and June 29, 2015. 
(To approve with or without corrections) 
 

XVI.  Warrant/Report # 26 (To approve with or without corrections) 
 

XVII. Possible/Anticipated Executive Session per V.S.A. Title 1 Section 313 
 

XVIII. Adjournment 
 
Posted July 2, 2015 on the official bulletin board in the lobby of the Municipal Building to the 
Town Website emailed to the Burlington Free Press, Milton Independent, Lake Champlain 
Access Television, Fox 44 News, WPTZ, WCAX, and posted in two other places within the Town 
of Milton and filed with the Town Clerk. 
 



P:\Selectboard Agenda Items\2015.06.15\centre37.interimCU.srp.SLB2015-01 

TOWN OF MILTON 
SELECTBOARD 
Planning & Economic Development Department 
43 Bombardier Road 
Milton, Vermont 05468-3205 
www.miltonvt.org 
(802) 893-1186 

 

STAFF REPORT 

 
Hearing Date:  June 15, 2015  

Case No: Selectboard 2015-01 

Application(s)/Requested Action: Interim Zoning Conditional Use Approval  

Existing Use: Public Warehousing 

Proposed Use:  Public Warehousing 

Application Received:  May 18, 2015 

Application Deemed Complete:  May 19, 2015 

Staff Report Finalized: June 11, 2015  

Applicant(s):  
Gordon and Margaret Gilbert 
200 Woodbury Rd. 
Burlington, VT 05408 
802.862.7816 

Owner(s):   
Same 

Engineer/License:  
None 

Surveyor/License:  
None 

E-911/Postal Address:  37 Centre Drive  

Tax Map, Parcel(s): 27, 9-14 

School Parcel Account Number(s) (SPAN):  11286 

Deed(s):  365, 390 

Existing Size: 1.49 Acres (per the Grand List) 

Zoning District(s):  Downtown Business District (DB1) 

Comprehensive Plan Planning Area: Town Core Planning Area, New Downtown Sub Area 

Location:  Located west of Centre Drive between US Route 7 South and Bombardier Road 

 

 



Selectboard Case Number 2015-01 Staff Report 
Interim Zoning Conditional Use Application - 37 Centre Drive - Gilbert - June 15, 2015 

 

Town of Milton Page 1 of 9 Planning Department 
 

 
Summary Introduction:  The Applicants, Gordon and Margaret Gilbert, are requesting Interim Zoning 
Conditional Use approval from the Selectboard according to the effective Interim Zoning Bylaw for a proposed 
5’ x 60’ new public warehousing (self-storage) building located at 37 Centre Drive, described as SPAN# 11286, 
Tax Map 27, Parcel 9-14.  The property contains six existing storage buildings and a carport. The subject 
property contains a total of 1.49 acres and is located within the “Downtown Business (DB1)” Zoning District 
 
Interested Persons:  At the outset of the hearing the Selectboard shall afford those persons wishing to 
achieve status as an interested person an opportunity under 24VSA4465 to be sworn in sign the hearing sheet.   
 

 
Comments: Jacob Hemmerick, Town Planner; and Amanda Pitts, Zoning Administrator, herein referred to as 
Staff, have reviewed the application, materials and plans submitted and have the following comments.  The 
numbered items propose conditions of approval. 
 
Applicant:  This matter comes before the Selectboard (SLB) on the application of Gordon and Margaret 
Gilbert referred to hereafter as the "Applicant". 
 
Application: The Applicant requests Interim Zoning Conditional Use approval.  The application was submitted 
by a representative of the Applicant, Lloyd Gilbert, on May 18, 2015 and deemed complete by the Town 
Planner on May 19, 2015. The application form was signed by the Applicant on May 15, 2015.   A copy of the 
application and all supporting materials are maintained in the application file and available for public inspection 
during Planning and Economic Development Department business hours.  
 
Ownership: The property is owned by Gordon and Margaret Gilbert and a deed of ownership is recorded in 
the Town's Land Records in Volume 365, Page 390.  The owner is a signatory to this application. 
 
Jurisdiction:  Land development is subject to the control of the Town of Milton pursuant to, but not limited to, 
the following: The Vermont Planning and Development Act (Act); The Town of Milton Zoning Regulations (ZR), 
effective January 5, 2015; The Town of Milton Subdivision Regulations (SR), effective June 28, 2010; and the 
Town of Milton Interim Zoning Bylaws effective April 6, 2015.    
 
This application is specifically subject to the Interim Zoning Bylaws, which apply to all Zoning Districts 
established and listed in Article II of the Milton Zoning Regulations, pursuant to Section II(D) of the Interim 
Bylaws.  The development is proposed on land located in the Downtown Business District (DB1) within the 
Town of Milton and is therefore subject to the Interim Zoning Bylaw.   
 
There is a well founded judicial recognition of the fact that substantial time and effort are required to compose 
a sound comprehensive zoning plan.  Town of Mendon v. Ezzo, 129 Vt. 351, 356 (1971).  As provided in the 
Purpose of the Interim Zoning Bylaws, residential development has outpaced commercial development in the 
Town Core, thereby upsetting the ratio of uses that the Town desires and for which the Town has planned, and 
the impacts of public warehousing may frustrate the Town’s goals both in the Town Core and throughout 
Milton.  It would be destructive of the final result and purpose of comprehensive zoning if, during the critical 
formulative period, persons could frustrate the Town’s overall goals both in the Town Core and throughout the 
Town before the Town could adopt amendments to the Milton Zoning Regulations.  See Town of Mendon v. 
Ezzo, 129 Vt. 351, 356-357, 358 (1971).  For the reasons set forth in the Purpose section of the Interim Zoning 
Bylaws, the Selectboard determined that certain types of development will or could be contrary to the 
amendments to the Milton Zoning Regulations that the Town presently is contemplating and therefore 
prohibited that development. 
 

http://legislature.vermont.gov/statutes/section/24/117/04465
http://legislature.vermont.gov/statutes/chapter/24/117
http://miltonvt.org/images/pdffiles/department/planning/Final_Zoning_Reg__1_05_15.pdf
http://miltonvt.org/images/pdffiles/department/planning/SubDivisionRegs.PDF
http://miltonvt.org/images/pdffiles/department/planning/Interim_Zoning_Bylaws.pdf


Selectboard Case Number 2015-01 Staff Report 
Interim Zoning Conditional Use Application - 37 Centre Drive - Gilbert - June 15, 2015 

 

Town of Milton Page 2 of 9 Planning Department 
 

Further, the proposed development, new public warehousing, is not allowed by Section II(D) of the Interim 
Zoning Bylaws.  "New Public Warehousing" is defined by the Section III of the Interim Zoning Bylaws as 
meaning, "any public warehousing for which a complete application for site plan approval has not been 
submitted to the Milton Department of Planning and Economic Development before February 26, 2015."   
 
However, uses restricted by the Interim Zoning Bylaws may be heard by the Selectboard according to Section 
IV, which states:   
 

The Selectboard may, upon application, authorize the issuance of permits for any type of land 
development as a conditional use not otherwise permitted by these Interim Bylaws, after public hearing 
[ . . . ].   

 
Notice/Warning of Hearing: Public warning was issued by the Department of Planning and Economic 
Development for the hearing according to Vermont Statutes Annotated Chapter 24 §4464.   Adjoining property 
owners notified include:  Richard LeBlanc, Kimberly Almeida-LeBlanc; Sheridan Properties, LLC; Gabriel Handy 
Trustee of DDH GSH Trust; Northern New England District Council of the Assemblies of God; Fletcher Allen 
Healthcare Inc.; Milton New Life Christian Fellowship; and the Fraternal Order of the Eagles.  Staff herein 
discloses that there was a slight defect in the Warning, which listed the meeting as "Thursday, June 15, 2015" 
instead of "Monday, June 15, 2015".   
 
Application Exhibits: The following exhibits were submitted with the application and attached to the Staff 
Report:  a partial site plan dated April 30, 2015 (ATTACHED). 
 
Waivers Requested:  None.  No waiver authority is granted to the Selectboard by the Interim Bylaw. 
 
Location: The site is located at 37 Centre Drive, described as Tax Map 27, Parcel 9-14 and School Parcel 
Account Number (SPAN) 11286. 
 
Size/Area:  According to the Assessor's Grand List, the subject parcel is approximately 1.49 acres. 
 
Zoning District & Planning Area:  The site is located within the Downtown Business (DB1) Zoning District 
described on the Town of Milton Zoning Map, last amended August 22, 2011, on record and display at the 
Municipal Offices and available on the Town's website.   
 
Comprehensive Planning Area:  The site is located within the Town Core Planning Area, as delineated in 
Map 2 of the 2013 Comprehensive Plan. The site is located in the New Downtown Sub Area, as delineated in 
Figure 9.1 of the 2013 Comprehensive Plan (p.112). 
 
Physical Characteristics/Natural Features:  The site is developed on flat terrain with little vegetation or 
landscaping.  The site drains directly to Lake Champlain via Mallets Creek.  The site contains no presumed 
wetlands, flood risk, significant habitat or habitat crossings. 
 
Existing Use/Structures/Characteristics:  The site contains six existing storage buildings (including an office), 
as well as a carport.  
 
Surrounding Uses/Structures:  To the west, a 38-unit multi-family residential building is being erected.  To 
the north is an existing restaurant with Site Plan approval for a 4-story, 30-unit elderly housing building.  To the 
east is an existing medical office, church and fraternal club.  To the south is a gym and hair salon.   
 

http://miltonvt.org/images/pdffiles/department/planning/Interim_Zoning_Bylaws.pdf
http://legislature.vermont.gov/statutes/section/24/117/04464
http://miltonvt.org/images/pdffiles/maps/ZoningMap.pdf
http://miltonvt.org/images/pdffiles/government/docs/CompPlan.pdf


Selectboard Case Number 2015-01 Staff Report 
Interim Zoning Conditional Use Application - 37 Centre Drive - Gilbert - June 15, 2015 

 

Town of Milton Page 3 of 9 Planning Department 
 

Proposed Use/Structures:  The Applicant seeks to build a new 5’ x 60’ new public warehousing (self-storage) 
building.  If the Selectboard grants approval, this would also need Site Plan approval from the DRB prior to 
being eligible for a Zoning Permit. 
 
Access:  The site is accessed directly from Bombardier Road, although the Site Plan for the adjacent 38-unit 
shows that the subject site's driveway shall be relocated from Bombardier Road to provide site access from a 
proposed private road crossing the subject site and granting access to the 38-unit multi-family housing site to 
the west.  This configuration is consistent with this site's original 1994 proposal. 
 
Existing Restrictions or Covenants:  The plan shows a 60-foot wide easement to benefit the lot to the west.  
No other restrictions are shown. 
 
Proposed Restrictions or Covenants:  No new restrictions or easements are shown. 

 
Approval History:  Based on the documents available in the Planning Department's file: 

 The Planning Commission Minutes of November 15, 1994 show that the Site Plan was first approved 
for a four-building self-storage facility.   

 In 2012, the site received DRB approval to amend the Site Plan to construct an additional 10' x 80' 
storage building.   

 In September of 2013, the site received Zoning Administrator approval to administratively amend the 
Site Plan to add a 10 foot by 80 foot storage area.  

 In August of 2014, the site received Zoning Administrator approval to administratively amend the Site 
Plan to add a 10 foot by 20 foot paved parking area.  

 In December of 2014, the site received Zoning Administrator approval to administratively amend the 
Site Plan after-the-fact for a metal carport canopy; this application was submitted after the Applicant 
had received a Voluntary Compliance Letter for constructing a carport without Site Plan Amendment or 
a Zoning Permit from the Zoning Administrator. 

 
INTERIM BYLAW REVIEW STANDARDS 

 
A.  Is the Proposed Development Consistent with the Health, Safety, and Welfare of the Town of 

Milton? 
 
To determine whether the proposed development is consistent with the health, safety, and welfare of the Town 
of Milton, the Selectboard should consider whether the proposal is the type of development that will or could be 
contrary to the amendments to the Milton Zoning Regulations that the Town is contemplating.   

 
The goals discussed in the Purpose statement in Section I of the Interim Zoning Bylaws guide the 
Selectboard’s analysis. 

 
Staff finds the following Interim Bylaw goals relevant to the proposal: 

 "The Town's goal for the Town Core is a mix of residential, commercial and some limited industrial uses 

in a pedestrian friendly, downtown atmosphere." 

 "Development within the Town Core should also create jobs, both for Milton residents and for residents 

in the communities surrounding Milton, and expand Milton's tax base." 

 "Public warehousing is a permitted use in several Zoning Districts, but the impact of this use may 

frustrate the Town's goals in both the Town Core and throughout the Town." 



Selectboard Case Number 2015-01 Staff Report 
Interim Zoning Conditional Use Application - 37 Centre Drive - Gilbert - June 15, 2015 

 

Town of Milton Page 4 of 9 Planning Department 
 

On the first point, Staff acknowledges that a "downtown atmosphere" is subject to interpretation and could vary 
widely from person to person; however, Milton's Comprehensive Plan helps define how Milton characterizes a 
downtown by defining it in the goals for the Planning Area and Sub Area.  Area goals included in the plan are: 

 Goal 9.1.1. Encourage structures to be placed to improve aesthetics and enhance pedestrian 

connections. 

 Goal 9.1.2. Enhance streetscape elements by incorporating streetlights, street trees, and signage. 

 Goal 9.1.3. Encourage commercial development including retail, restaurants, professional services, 

offices, hotels, and incubator spaces in the Downtown Business district. Residential uses should be 

encouraged in the New Downtown Center and New Downtown West district. 

 Goal 9.1.6. Further evaluate and prioritize the input from the 2007 Streetscape study and the 2012 

Planning Commission Enhancing Route 7 public forum and survey with the goal of implementation of 

priority recommendations.  

Furthermore, the ZR455 states that the purpose of the Downtown Business (DB1) District is  
 

The purpose of the DB1 District is to encourage and enhance the development of Town Core areas with 
the tallest buildings, highest density, and greatest diversity of commercial and light industrial uses.  
Residential uses will not be allowed except where incorporated into a Planned Unit Development-MIXED 
USE or where created as an Elderly Housing Complex.  Buildings should be placed close to the 
sidewalks.  A pedestrian friendly environment should be encouraged through the planting of street trees 
and green belts along sidewalks and the placement of safe street crossings. 

 

Staff finds that the proposal is not fully consistent with Milton's defined vision for a downtown atmosphere 

according to the goals and purposes. 

On the second point, Staff does not have solid numbers on public warehousing's relationship to job creation; 
however, we are aware that many of the permitted public warehousing facilities in Town employ few or no 
employees.  We know this because the required amount of parking for this use is benchmarked to the number 
of employees by ZR812.  At a minimum, there must be at least two parking spaces for each 3 employees for a 
public warehousing use.  In this case, the 1994 plans delineated two parking spaces, which were removed in 
subsequent amendments and are not shown on the proposed plans.  While Staff finds that this deserves more 
study, it would appear based on the parking, that this use employs fewer people than other uses prioritized for 
the new downtown in the Comprehensive Plan. 

 
On the third point, Staff finds that the use frustrates certain goals in the Town Core, specifically the goals to: 

 Goal 9.14.1. Make attractive transition zones available for other industries.  

 Goal 9.14.1.a. Develop transition zones along the Route 7 corridor to encourage development of 

businesses that are important to the economy but do not fit in downtown or in an industrial park. 

 Goal 9.14.1.d. Encourage the relocation of existing businesses into transition areas designed to 

mitigate the problems caused by the current pattern of automobile oriented sprawl on Route 7.  

 Goal 9.14.2.a. Update the Town Comprehensive Plan to enable zoning alternative locations for 

companies that are in between commercial and industrial entities [ . . .]. 

The subject use in this case seems to be the kind of use directly targeted by the goals addressed above as a 
use that does not fit in downtown and which could preclude development that more fully meets the Town's 
goals. 
 



Selectboard Case Number 2015-01 Staff Report 
Interim Zoning Conditional Use Application - 37 Centre Drive - Gilbert - June 15, 2015 

 

Town of Milton Page 5 of 9 Planning Department 
 

Based on this analysis, Staff tentatively concludes that the proposed development will or could be contrary to 
the contemplated amendments to the Milton Zoning Regulations and is not consistent with the health, safety, 
and welfare of the Town of Milton.   

 
B. Is the Proposed Development Consistent with the Standards Identified in Section IV(A)(i) – (vi)? 

 
Even if the Selectboard concludes that the proposed development is consistent with the health, safety, and 
welfare of the Town of Milton, the Selectboard must also conclude that the proposed development will not 
result in an undue adverse effect on any of the criteria listed in Section IV(A) of the Interim Zoning Bylaws in 
order for the Selectboard to authorize the issuance of a zoning permit for the proposed development.   

 
Interim Zoning Bylaws Section IV(A)(i):  The proposed development shall not result in an undue 
adverse effect on the capacity of existing or planned community facilities, services, or lands. 

 
Unless otherwise stated, Staff does not see that the expansion would have an undue adverse effect on the 
capacity of existing or planned community facilities.  In this case, the opposite is true.  The site does not take 
full advantage of the existing community facilities, such as wastewater service, pedestrian infrastructure, and 
proximity to municipal facilities. 

 
Interim Zoning Bylaws Section IV(A)(ii):  The proposed development shall not result in an undue 
adverse effect on the existing patterns and uses of development in the area. 
 
Staff finds that an important standard to help measure patterns of development is established by the Zoning 
Regulations in Section 160.  ZR160 establishes "Like Kind Quality" as a general standard to be considered.  It 
states: 
 

LIKE KIND QUALITY Standard: “Like kind quality” is a suitable standard in historic areas or other 
established neighborhoods.  In emerging areas and in locations where future plans differ from existing 
development, quality of a development may be judged in relation to the standards of an approved Town 
Core Master Plan. 
 

ZR1110 defines "Like Kind Quality" as: 
 
Having characteristics that allow a use to be located in harmony with other adjacent uses and to be 
compatible with the overall character of the neighborhood. Some elements affecting compatibility 
include HEIGHT, scale, mass and bulk of structures. Other characteristics include pedestrian or 
vehicular traffic, circulation, access and parking impacts. Other important characteristics that affect 
compatibility are landscaping, lighting, noise, odor and architecture. Compatibility does not mean "the 
same as." Rather, compatibility refers to the sensitivity of development proposals in maintaining the 
character of existing development.  

 
ZR804, also establishes special provisions applicable to the DB1 Zoning District and states: 
 

Uses may mix as long as they are sited and designed of LIKE KIND QUALITY with neighboring 
properties.  Houses, offices and stores may be above, next to, or in the general vicinity of each other; 
but consideration should be given to elements of common concern - hours of operation, lighting, shared 
parking, etc. 

 
The existing and proposed development could be characterized as being located in an "emerging area", as 
described above. The Town Core Master Plan of 2000 establishes a vision that has largely been incorporated 
in the Town Plan in the goals cited above.  Staff finds that the proposed development would have an undue 

http://miltonvt.org/images/pdffiles/department/planning/TowncoreMasterPlan.PDF


Selectboard Case Number 2015-01 Staff Report 
Interim Zoning Conditional Use Application - 37 Centre Drive - Gilbert - June 15, 2015 

 

Town of Milton Page 6 of 9 Planning Department 
 

adverse effect upon patterns and uses of development in the area by frustrating the Zoning Regulations 
standard for "Like Kind Quality", which could development and limit the efficiency of land use. 
 
Interim Zoning Bylaws Section IV(A)(iii):  The proposed development shall not result in an undue 
adverse effect on traffic on roads and highways in the vicinity. 

 
Staff finds that the proposed expansion would have very little impact upon traffic on roads in the vicinity. 
Observations and numbers provided for similar projects, based on Institute of Transportation Engineers (ITE) 
trip generation data, supports this position.   

 
Interim Zoning Bylaws Section IV(A)(iv):  The proposed development shall not result in an undue 
adverse effect on environmental limitations of the site or area and significant natural resource areas 
and sites. 

 
The physical characteristics of the site are noted in the introductory information above.  Staff finds that the 
developed site contains no significant natural resource areas that would be impacted by the proposal. 

 
Interim Zoning Bylaws Section IV(A)(v):  The proposed development shall not result in an undue 
adverse effect on utilization of renewable energy resources. 
 
Staff finds that the proposed development would not adversely impact the utilization of renewable energy 
resources.  No lighting or electrical service is shown on the Plans, and therefore has few energy needs. 

 
Interim Zoning Bylaws Section IV(A)(vi):  The proposed development shall not result in an undue 
adverse effect on the Town of Milton Comprehensive Plan and other Town bylaws, ordinances, or 
regulations in effect. 

 
Town of Milton, Vermont 2013 Comprehensive Plan 
 
In addition to the Comprehensive Goals stated above, Staff finds that the following goals may be in conflict with 
the proposal, such that the proposal could have an undue adverse impact upon those goals. 
 

 Goal 3.2.6. Target creative-economy industries to the Town Core as retailers and professional offices. 

 Goal 3.2.11. Better define the Town Core and create a sense of place unique to this area, using 

methods discussed by the Planning Commission through a 2012 public input session and the 2007 

'Town Core Streetscape and Accessibility and Design Study'. 

 Goal 3.5.3. Implement alternatives for the transition zones identified in the Route 7 Land Use Study to 

encourage development of businesses that are important to the economy but do not fit in downtown or 

in an industrial park. Investigate incentives to encourage the relocation of existing businesses into 

transition areas designed to mitigate the problems caused by the current pattern of automobile oriented 

sprawl on Route 7. 

 
Staff finds that public warehousing is a not a high-value professional use, could detract from creative-economy 
industries, could frustrate the recommended DB1 Building Design Guidelines listed in the Town Core 
Streetscape and Accessibility Design Study on p.51, and could frustrate the objectives of the transition zones 
explained on page 64 of the Route 7 Land Use Study.  Upon review and consideration of the goals of the 
Comprehensive Plan and documents referenced therein, Staff finds that the proposed development would 
result in an undue adverse effect on the Comprehensive Plan 

 

http://miltonvt.org/images/pdffiles/department/planning/Route&LandUseTransStudy.PDF
http://miltonvt.org/images/pdffiles/department/planning/TownCoreStScape.PDF
http://miltonvt.org/images/pdffiles/department/planning/TownCoreStScape.PDF


Selectboard Case Number 2015-01 Staff Report 
Interim Zoning Conditional Use Application - 37 Centre Drive - Gilbert - June 15, 2015 

 

Town of Milton Page 7 of 9 Planning Department 
 

Milton Zoning Regulations, effective January 5, 2015, and Milton Subdivision Regulations, effective June 28, 
2010 

 
If the following proposed conditions are met, the proposed development will not result in an undue adverse 
effect on the existing Milton Zoning Regulations or Milton Subdivision Regulations: 

 
1. Applicant shall receive all necessary approvals from the Development Review Board before the 

Administrative Officer may issue a zoning permit. 
 

2. Applicant shall obtain a zoning permit before commencing any land development on the subject 
property. 

 
If the following proposed condition is met, the proposed development will not result in an undue adverse effect 
on all other Town ordinances. 

 
3. Applicant shall receive all other applicable Town approvals and/or permits.  

 
Staff finds that the proposed development will result in an undue adverse effect on the Town of Milton 
Comprehensive Plan, but will not result in an undue adverse effect on the other Town bylaws, ordinances, or 
regulations in effect if subject to the conditions above. 
  

INTERIM BYLAW RECESS LANGAUGE 
 
Staff finds that the Planning Commission may be able to offer greater insight and provide valuable advisory 
opinion, and recommends that that the Selectboard engage Interim Bylaws Section IV, B, which states: 
 

At any time during the Selectboard’s public hearing on an application, the Selectboard may request 
written comment from the Planning Commission regarding the application and one or more of the 
above-described standards. Upon such a request, the Planning Commission shall review the 
application materials at one of its regular meetings and prepare and provide to the Selectboard written 
comments, which may include recommendations, responding to the Selectboard’s request. The 
Planning Commission’s comments and recommendations are advisory only and the Selectboard is not 
required to adopt them in its written decision. During the continued public hearing, the Selectboard shall 
provide the opportunity for comment or responses to the Planning Commission’s comments and 
recommendations. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
 

Staff recommends that the Selectboard move RECESS (or continue) the Interim Zoning Bylaw hearing for a 
proposed 5’ x 60’ new public warehousing (self-storage) building located at 37 Centre Drive, described as 
SPAN# 11286, Tax Map 27, Parcel 9-14 to the Regular Selectboard Meeting of July 6, 2015 to allow 
comment from the Planning Commission at their next available meeting on June 30, 2015.  
 
Respectfully Submitted: 
 
 
 
______________________________ 
Jacob Hemmerick, Planning Director 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Partial Site Plan dated April 30, 2015 



Selectboard Case Number 2015-01 Staff Report 
Interim Zoning Conditional Use Application - 37 Centre Drive - Gilbert - June 15, 2015 

 

Town of Milton Page 8 of 9 Planning Department 
 

COPIES TO: 
1. Applicant(s) 

2. Owners(s) 



 

 

TOWN OF MILTON 
Planning Commission 
Planning & Economic Development Department 
43 Bombardier Road 
Milton, Vermont 05468-3205 
www.miltonvt.org 
(802) 893-1186 

 
MEMORANDUM 
 
TO:  Selectboard 
CC:  Gordon and Margaret Gilbert, Applicants  
  Paul Bohne, Town Manager 
  Application File 
FROM:  Planning Commission 
DATE:  June 29, 2015 
 
SUBJECT: ADVISORY OPINION ON INTERIM ZONING APPLICATION 

CONDITIONAL USE - 37 CENTRE DRIVE - GILBERT 
 
At the Selectboard's Regular meeting of June 15, 2015, the Board opened and conducted a 
hearing on the above-referenced application. 
 
At the hearing, the Applicant stated that the proposal is not subject to the jurisdictional 
authority of the Interim Zoning Bylaw, arguing that an expansion to an existing public 
warehousing site is not "new public warehousing".  The Applicant further made the 
argument that if an expansion to an existing public warehousing use is subject to and 
restricted by the Interim Bylaw, then this would hold true for an expansion to a "new single 
family dwelling" use in the M4  District, such as the addition of a deck.   
 
At the hearing, the Planning Staff stated that the expansion of an existing public 
warehousing use without prior site plan approval is subject to Interim Zoning according to 
the language of the Bylaw, noting that the Town Attorney arrived at the same conclusion. 
 
The Selectboard recessed the hearing to July 6, 2015 pursuant to Interim Bylaws Section IV, 
B, which states: 

At any time during the Selectboard’s public hearing on an application, the 
Selectboard may request written comment from the Planning Commission regarding 
the application and one or more of the above-described standards. Upon such a 
request, the Planning Commission shall review the application materials at one of its 
regular meetings and prepare and provide to the Selectboard written comments, 
which may include recommendations, responding to the Selectboard’s request. The 
Planning Commission’s comments and recommendations are advisory only and the 
Selectboard is not required to adopt them in its written decision. During the 
continued public hearing, the Selectboard shall provide the opportunity for 
comment or responses to the Planning Commission’s comments and 
recommendations.  

 



 
 

Town of Milton Planning Commission Advisory Opinion 
Interim Zoning Conditional Use Application - 37 Centre Drive - Gilbert 

 

Page 2 of 4 
 

The Selectboard requested an advisory opinion from the Planning Commission, evaluating 
the proposal's consistency with the general standards of the Bylaw as well as the Bylaw's 
jurisdiction to the proposal based on the adopted language. 
 
At a duly noticed special meeting of the Planning Commission on June 29, 2015, the 
Commission reviewed the application under consideration (along with the associated Staff 
Report) evaluating the proposal's applicability to the Interim Zoning Bylaw and its 
relationship to the standards therein.  The Commission agrees with the findings and 
conclusions stated in the Staff Report and has the following advisory opinion for the 
Selectboard’s consideration.   
 
Jurisdictional Question 
The Planning Commission finds that the proposal is for "new public warehousing", not a  
"new single family dwelling" or any other unrelated use restricted by the Interim Bylaw.  
The two uses compared by the Applicant present different kinds of impact and carry 
distinct definitions.  Nevertheless, "new single family dwelling" is classified by the standing 
Bylaw as a "single housekeeping unit", and the Interim Bylaw makes clear in its definition of 
a "new single family dwelling" that the net increase in dwellings -- not accessory structures 
thereto -- is the basis for the restriction. 
 
According to the Planning Commission’s interpretation of the definition of "new public 
warehousing", anything that is not existing and not shown on an approved site plan is new -
- including expansions to existing public warehousing sites.  The Bylaw defines "new public 
warehousing" as follows: 
New Public Warehousing shall mean any public warehousing for which a complete 
application for site plan approval had not been submitted to the Milton Department of 
Planning and Economic Development before February 26, 2015. 

The Planning Commission concludes that the proposal for which the Applicant seeks 
approval is not shown on an approved site plan and is therefore subject to the Interim 
Bylaw standards for conditional use review.  These standards are shown in bold italic. 
 
Is the proposed development consistent with the health, safety and welfare of the Town of 
Milton? 
Zoning Regulation Section 100 states, "The Regulations are designed to implement the 
purposes and policies set forth in the Plan and the Act."  Based on the Comprehensive Plan 
goals mentioned in the Staff Report and further noted below, the Planning Commission finds 
the proposed development would be contrary to the Milton Zoning Regulation amendments 
currently under consideration by the Commission and is therefore not consistent with the 
health, safety and welfare of the community. 

The proposed development shall not result in an undue adverse effect on the capacity of 
existing or planned community facilities, services, or land. 
The Commission finds that the proposal adversely affects capacity, because it does not 
utilize existing infrastructure -- developed with public funds -- to promote downtown 
development and to enhance property values in the Town Core.  For example, underutilized 
sewer capacity creates a diseconomy of scale by decreasing marginal revenue.  The result is 
an increased marginal cost to the system subscribers/funders, who pay for the capital 



 
 

Town of Milton Planning Commission Advisory Opinion 
Interim Zoning Conditional Use Application - 37 Centre Drive - Gilbert 

 

Page 3 of 4 
 

investment and operation. The Commission will be evaluating these opportunity costs (to 
the community as a whole) as it considers future amendments to the Zoning Regulations. 
 
The proposed development shall not result in an undue adverse effect on the existing 
patterns and uses of development in the area. 
The Commission finds that the proposed use is addressed by Goal 3.5.3 of the 
Comprehensive Plan (listed below) and results in an adverse effect by deterring prioritized 
downtown uses and by precluding mutually beneficial economies among those downtown 
uses in the Town Core.   
 
The proposed development shall not result in an undue adverse effect on traffic on roads 
and highways in the vicinity. 
The Commission finds that the proposal would not result in an undue effect on traffic. 
 
The proposed development shall not result in an undue adverse effect on environmental 
limitations of the site or area and significant natural resource areas and sites. 
The Commission finds that the proposal would not result in an undue effect on natural 
resources. 
 
The proposed development shall not result in an undue adverse effect on renewable energy 
resources. 
The Commission finds that the proposal would not result in an undue effect on renewable 
energy resources. 
 
The proposed development shall not result in an undue adverse effect on the Town of Milton 
Comprehensive Plan and other Town bylaws, ordinances or regulations in effect. 
The Planning Commission finds that Staff's proposed conditions would address the Town 
bylaws, ordinance or regulations in effect, but concludes that the proposal would, however, 
result in an undue adverse effect on the following key goals of the Plan: 

Goal 9.1.3. Encourage commercial development including retail, restaurants, 
professional services, offices, hotels, and incubator spaces in the Downtown Business 
district. 
Goal 3.2.6. Target creative-economy industries to the Town Core as retailers and 
professional offices. 
Goal 3.5.3. Implement alternatives for the transition zones identified in the Route 7 
Land Use Study to encourage development of businesses that are important to the 
economy but do not fit in downtown or in an industrial park. Investigate incentives 
to encourage the relocation of existing businesses into transition areas designed to 
mitigate the problems caused by the current pattern of automobile oriented sprawl 
on Route 7. 
Goal 9.14.1.a. Develop transition zones along the Route 7 corridor to encourage 
development of businesses that are important to the economy but do not fit in 
downtown or in an industrial park. 
Goal 9.14.2.a. Update the Town Comprehensive Plan to enable zoning alternative 
locations for companies that are in between commercial and industrial entities [ . . .]. 

 
Concluding Recommendation 

http://miltonvt.org/images/pdffiles/department/planning/Route&LandUseTransStudy.PDF
http://miltonvt.org/images/pdffiles/department/planning/Route&LandUseTransStudy.PDF


 
 

Town of Milton Planning Commission Advisory Opinion 
Interim Zoning Conditional Use Application - 37 Centre Drive - Gilbert 

 

Page 4 of 4 
 

According to the findings and conclusions above, the Planning Commission recommends 
that the Selectboard deny the proposal.   



























































Resolution  

 

   
Expending Restricted and Designated Funds 

 
WHEREAS, the Town and Village of Milton merged in January of 2003: and  
 
WHEREAS, as a result of that merger certain funds were turned over to the Town; and  
 
WHEREAS, those funds have been carried on the books since the merger; and  
  
WHEREAS, the Funds turned over to the Town were restricted for Fire Department and Rescue 
Uses; and  
 
WHEREAS, it would be beneficial to the Town to use those funds for capital purposes consistent 
with the purposes for which the funds were intended. 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, the Selectboard authorizes the use of those funds for 
the purpose of enhancing emergency services by using the funds to purchase a thermal imaging 
camera and the conversion of an ambulance. 
 
Dated:  July 6, 2015 
 
Milton Selectboard: 
 
___________________________________               ___________________________________ 
Darren Adams, Chair       Stuart King, Vice Chair     
   
___________________________________               ___________________________________ 
John Bartlett, Clerk         John Cushing       
 
___________________________________ 
Kenneth Nolan 
 
 
Filed with the Milton Town Clerk’s Office this ______ day of _______, 2015 
 
Attest: _______________________________________________________________   
                                                 Milton Town Clerk 

 



 
 

Resolution  

 

   
Removal of Designation of the Health Stabilization Fund 

 
WHEREAS, in 2012 the Town Manager and Selectboard agreed that there was significant 
uncertainty in predicting the cost of the Town’s health care premiums, and 
 
WHEREAS, the Selectboard agreed that a Health Stabilization Fund should be established; and  
 
WHEREAS, any funds not expended annually as the Town’s contribution to the Health 
Reimbursement Account (HRA) would be designated as a Health Stabilization Fund; and  
  
WHEREAS, the anticipated expenses have not occurred in any year since the Fund was 
inaugurated.  
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT, the Selectboard has determined that there is no 
further need to designate those funds; and  
 
FURTHER RESOLVES THAT, the funds in the Health Stabilization Fund will no longer be 
designated and will become part of the unrestricted fund balance of the Town. 
 
Dated:  July 6, 2015 
 
Milton Selectboard: 
 
___________________________________               ___________________________________ 
Darren Adams, Chair       Stuart King, Vice Chair     
   
___________________________________               ___________________________________ 
John Bartlett, Clerk         John Cushing       
 
___________________________________ 
Kenneth Nolan 
 
 
Filed with the Milton Town Clerk’s Office this ______ day of _______, 2015 
 
Attest: _______________________________________________________________   
                                                 Milton Town Clerk 

 



 

Selectboard Minutes Page 1 of 5           June 15, 2015 
 

Milton Selectboard Meeting Minutes 1 
June 15, 2015 6:00 P.M.  2 

Municipal Building Community Room 3 
       4 
Selectboard Members Present:  Darren Adams, Chair (part of meeting via phone); Stuart King, Vice 5 
Chair; John Bartlett, Clerk; Kenneth Nolan, Member; John Cushing, Member 6 
 7 
Selectboard Members Not Present: None 8 

Staff Members Present: Paul Bohne, Interim Town Manager; Roger Hunt, Public Works Director; Joanne 9 
Davis, Finance Director; Jacob Hemmerick, Planning Director; Kym Duchesneau, Recreation Coordinator; 10 
Brett Van Noordt, Police Chief  11 
 12 
Others Present: Courtney Lamdin, Milton Independent; Erik Schmidt, Lloyd Gilbert, Gordon Gilbert, 13 
Robert Lombard, Chris LaFrance, Cindy LaFrance 14 
 15 
I. Call to Order – King called the meeting to order at 6:00 PM 16 
 17 
II. Flag Salute – King led the attendees in a Salute to the Flag. 18 

 19 
III. Agenda Review- none 20 

 21 
IV. Public Forum 22 

Ron Harding addressed the Board regarding an ongoing issue with his neighbor’s dogs barking 23 
and the Police Department’s enforcement.  24 

 25 
V. Public Hearing regarding the Fiscal years 2016-2021 Capital Improvement Budget and 26 

Program. 27 
  28 
 King opened the public hearing. 29 
 30 
 Interim Town Manager Paul Bohne and staff took the Board through the CIP for FYs 2016-2021 31 
 and discussed recommended changes by staff. 32 
 33 

Discussion regarding procedure and threshold for Board to sign off on capital purchases. 34 
Amount is $10,000 in administrative code. 35 
 36 
Discussion regarding the purchase and use of single axle dump trucks in FY ’15 and FY ’16 and 37 
what was approved, and the procedure to approve the CIP and impact fees. Discussion 38 
regarding having a spare truck available if needed in a situation when a truck is down.  39 
 40 
Bartlett moved to close the public hearing, second by Cushing. Approved 5-0 with roll call 41 
vote. Closed at 7:14 PM. 42 
 43 
Bartlett moved to approve the FY ’16-21 Capital Improvement Program dated June 15th 2015 44 
as amended. Adams second with amendment less the purchase of the seven yard dump truck. 45 
Bartlett moved to include Adams’ amendment in his original motion.  46 
 47 



 

Selectboard Minutes Page 2 of 5           June 15, 2015 
 

Bartlett moved to approve the FY ’16-21 Capital Improvement Program dated June 15th 2015 48 
less the purchase of an $187,500 seven yard dump truck. Second by Adams. Passed 3-2 with 49 
roll call vote (Bartlett, Adams and King “yes;” Cushing and Nolan “no.”) 50 
 51 

VI. Public Hearing under Interim Zoning Conditional Use Application 52 
 53 
King opened the public hearing at 7:17 PM.  54 
 55 
37 Centre Drive - Gordon & Margaret Gilbert, Owners/Applicants.  The Applicants are 56 
requesting Conditional Use approval from the Selectboard according to the effective Interim 57 
Zoning Bylaw for a proposed 5’ x 60’ new public warehousing (self-storage) building located at 58 
37 Centre Drive, described as SPAN# 11286, Tax Map 27, and Parcel 9-14.  The property 59 
contains 6 existing storage buildings and a carport. The subject property contains a total of 1.49 60 
acres and is located within the “Downtown Business (DB1)” Zoning District. 61 
 62 
Lloyd and Gordon Gilbert addressed the Board. The Applicant claimed that the proposal is not 63 
subject to the jurisdictional authority of the Interim Zoning Bylaw, arguing that an expansion to 64 
an existing public warehousing site is "new public warehousing".  Staff and the Town Attorney 65 
found that the expansion of an existing public warehousing use that has not received Site Plan 66 
approval is subject to Interim Zoning according to the language of the Interim Bylaw. 67 
 68 
The Applicant further made the argument before the Board that if an expansion to an existing 69 
public warehousing use is restricted by the Bylaw, then this would hold true for a normal 70 
expansion to a single-family dwelling unit use in the M4  District, such as a deck or sun room.   71 
 72 
Cushing moved for a continuance the hearing until July 6. Second by Bartlett. Passed 5-0 after 73 
roll call vote.  74 
 75 
Selectboard also asked for a specific opinion from the Planning Commission concerning the 76 
Interim Zoning definitions and if the proposal indeed meets the definition of "new public 77 
warehousing" thereby making it subject to the Bylaw's jurisdiction. This opinion will be shared 78 
at July 6 meeting.  79 
 80 
Public hearing closed at 7:35. 81 
 82 
New Business 83 

A) Consideration of a donation of planning, labor and materials for a park footbridge.  84 
 85 
Eagle Scout Candidate Erik Michael Schmidt shared his plans and design with the Board. 86 
Plans to fundraise the $400 needed for the materials. Will recruit other scouts to assist.  87 
 88 
Cushing moved to approve the donation of planning and labor and materials from Eagle 89 
Scout Candidate Erik Michael Schmidt to replace the foot bridge in the Recreation Park, 90 
located off Bombardier Rd. Second by Bartlett. Passed 5-0 with roll call vote. 91 



 

Selectboard Minutes Page 3 of 5           June 15, 2015 
 

 92 
B.  Consideration of a gift from Gisela and Adam Alpert 93 
 Additional entrance sign to municipal complex, fire/rescue sign and police sign. Previous gift   94 
made for municipal complex and north and south of Town on Rte. 7. 95 
 96 
Bartlett moved to approve the receipt of a gift from Gisela and Adam Alpert in the amount 97 

of 50% of the cost of the entrance 2 Municipal Building sign, the Police Department sign and 98 
the Fire/Rescue sign not to exceed $10,000. Second by Nolan. Passed 5-0 roll call vote. 99 

 100 
               C.  Implementing the Municipal Facility sign package  101 
 Bohne said to implement the signs in the plan the Town will need to match. It is a sole source 102 

 project due to its nature. 103 
  104 

Bartlett moved to approve the implementation of the proposed sign package and to utilize 105 
the gift from Adam and Gisela Alpert and up to $10,000 from the 2015 Contingency Line item 106 
of the FY 2015 Budget. Second by Nolan. Passed 5-0 roll call vote. 107 

 108 
                  D. Intention to accept the land and assets of the Village Cemetery Association 109 

  The association is looking to disband. Bohne said once the association gives up its non-profit 110 
status the Town can assume its assets and continue to manage the cemetery. Bob Lombard 111 
addressed the Board. Learned the Town cannot spend funds on a non-profit association, it is 112 
looking to add a new road to access the new section 6 on top of the hill. Current fund balance 113 
is $7,700 for the association. Will not be much of financial burden for the Town this year. 600 114 
lots available to sell, road will be helpful for access. Lot size is 4x10.  115 

 116 
     Darren Adams left the phone connection to the meeting. 117 
 118 
 Cushing moved to express intention to accept the land and assets of the Village Cemetery 119 
 provided that the Trustees dissolve. Second by Bartlett. Approved unanimously.  120 
 121 
                  E. Designation of Paving Funds 122 
                       Roger Hunt said the recent weather has delayed the paving schedule. Wants to use FY     123 
         ’15 funds for the pavement. Bohne said the funds are still available.  124 
 125 
         Bartlett moved to designate unutilized paving funds from the FY 2015 Budget in the     126 
 amount of up to $198,000 to be utilized in FY 2016. Second by Cushing. Approved 127 
 unanimously. 128 

 129 
                  F. Appointment of Jacob Hemmerick to the Planning Advisory Committee  130 
                        PAC) of the Chittenden County Regional Planning (CCRPC) Commission. 131 

 132 
Cushing moved to appoint Jacob Hemmerick to the PAC of the CCRPC. Second by 133 
Bartlett. Approved unanimously.  134 
 135 

                  G.  Appointment of an Acting Zoning Administrator 136 
                         Cushing moved to appoint Jacob Hemmerick as the acting Zoning  Administrator.  137 
                         Second by Bartlett. Approved unanimously.  138 
 139 
 140 



 

Selectboard Minutes Page 4 of 5           June 15, 2015 
 

                  H.  Engaging the Audit firm of Sullivan, Powers & Co., P.C. 141 
          Bohne stated that there would be an annual engagement letter with the audit firm for five           142 
          years. Bohne will be negotiating the price for the single audit and will look for it to come in    143 
          around $25,000. 144 
 145 

Bartlett moved to authorize the Interim Town Manager to engage Sullivan Powers & Co., 146 
P.C. to provide audit services for the Fiscal Year 2015. Cushing second. Approved 147 
unanimously.  148 
 149 
Cushing stated that if adjusting journal entries are made by the auditing firm that it is 150 
brought to the Selectboard’s attention. Nolan stated he is not comfortable in having the 151 
firm do the audit, create journal entries and train staff.  152 
 153 
I.  Appointing a representative to the Catamount Industrial Park Stormwater  154 
      Association. 155 
The Town is a member of the association.  156 
      157 
Cushing moved to appoint the Town Manager, by position, to represent the Town on the 158 
Catamount Industrial Park Stormwater Association. Second by Bartlett. 159 

 160 
J.  Review The Financial Management Questionnaire as required by State Statute. 161 

                        The Legislature requests it be reviewed and placed in Town files. Has been reviewed by     162 
            John Gifford, Town Treasurer.    163 
 164 
  Bartlett moved to acknowledge that the Board reviewed the Financial Management  165 
  Questionnaire and instruct the Vice Chair of the Selectboard to sign the questionnaire  166 
  to so state. Second by Nolan. Approved unanimously. 167 
             168 
                 169 

VII.        Old Business- none  170 
 171 

VIII.       Reconsideration- none 172 
 173 

XIV.       Manager’s Report 174 
        Bohne acknowledged Erik Wells in the Town Manager’s Office for his work in the Town   175 
       Manager Finalists’ visit. Bohne also recognized Don Turner for his assistance during the day.   176 
       Both candidates had a great visit. 177 

 178 
X.         Potential and/or Future Agenda Items 179 
     Comprehensive look at the purchase of the dump trucks in question for the Board.  180 
 181 
XI.        Minutes of the Regular Selectboard Meeting on June 1, 2015 and Special Selectboard  182 
       Meeting on May 26, 2015. 183 
 184 
             Bartlett moved to approve the minutes of the Regular Selectboard Meeting on June 1, 2015 185 
        and Special Selectboard Meeting on May 26, 2015 as presented. Second by Cushing.   186 
       Approved unanimously.  187 
 188 
 189 



 

Selectboard Minutes Page 5 of 5           June 15, 2015 
 

XII.      Warrant/Report # 24 190 
           Bartlett reviewed the FY15 Warrant/Invoice Report #24 for Board orders. The amount of these 191 
    orders is $102,083.07 192 
 193 
A few items of mention, in random order: 194 
 195 
- Action Flag Company, $1,490.43 - 112 flags (for power poles along route 7), plus accessories 196 
($1,035.21 from flag trust) 197 
- Gardner Supply Company, $4,449.98 - plants, fertilizer, delivery and 4 hours supervision for Town 198 
office flower beds project 199 
- Charlebois, $3,398.44 - repair #402 Chevy ambulance - worn steering parts 200 
- Vermont Irrigation, Inc., $12,395.00 - Town offices, additions to existing irrigation 201 
 202 
Bartlett moved to recommend approval of these orders. Cushing second. Approved unanimously. 203 
 204 
Nolan voiced concern that the irrigation invoice was over $10,000 as indicated in the Administrative 205 
Code, requiring bid.  206 
 207 
XIII. Possible/Anticipated Executive Session per V.S.A. Title 1 Section 313- none 208 
 209 

Bartlett moved to find premature public knowledge about Human Resources would cause the 210 
Town or person to suffer a substantial disadvantage. Second by Nolan. Approved unanimously.   211 

 212 
Bartlett moved to enter into executive session to discuss Human Resources under the provisions 213 
of V.S.A. Title 1 Section 313A3. Second by Nolan. Approved unanimously.   214 
 215 
Entered Executive Session at 8:36 PM. 216 
 217 
Bartlett motioned to close Executive Session at 9:55 PM. Second by Cushing. Approved 218 
unanimously.  There was no action as a result of Executive Session. 219 

 220 
        XIX. Adjournment 221 
 Bartlett  motioned to adjourn meeting at 10:05 PM.  Second by Cushing. Approved unanimously 222 
 223 

 224 
These proceedings were live-streamed and filmed by LCATV.  225 

 226 
Respectfully Submitted, 227 

 228 
___________________________________ Date: _______________________ 229 
John Bartlett, Selectboard Clerk 230 
 231 
Filed with Milton Town Clerk’s Office on this __________ day of __________, _____ 232 
 233 
 ATTEST: ____________________________________ Milton Town Clerk 234 

 235 



 

Selectboard Minutes Page 1 of 2 June 23, 2015 
 

Town of Milton 1 

Selectboard Special Meeting Minutes 2 
June 23, 2015  3 

6:00 PM Board Meeting 4 
Town Manager’s Conference Room 5 

 6 
Selectboard Members Present:  Darren Adams, Chair (by phone); Stuart King, Vice Chair; John Bartlett, 7 
Clerk; John Cushing; Kenneth Nolan 8 

Selectboard Members Not Present: None (Darren Adams by phone) 9 

Staff Members Present:  Paul Bohne, Interim Town Manager 10 

Others Present: Courtney Lamdin, Milton Independent and Rose Marie Ryes 11 
 12 
I. Call to Order – Vice Chair Stuart King called the meeting to order at 6:00 13 

 14 
II. Flag Salute – Since there was no flag present, no salute took place. 15 

 16 
III. Agenda Review –The Board agreed to have the Interim Town Manger discuss the transition 17 

from assistant town manager to town manager. They also agree to discuss possible consultation 18 
regarding Town finances. 19 
 20 

IV. Public Forum –none 21 
 22 

V. Transition 23 
Mr. Bartlett asked Mr. Bohne to provide some insight into his transition from an assistant 24 
manager position to town manager. Mr. Bohne provided comments on his experience as it 25 
related to that transition. 26 
 27 

VI. Finances 28 
Mr. Bohne provided his views on the status of the Finance Director being up to speed on being 29 
able to provide proper information and financial reports. He stated that there was no 30 
institutional knowledge as related to the TIF districts and the finances of each. He said that he 31 
had identified White and Burke as a qualified consultant to aid the Town in analyzing and 32 
helping to manage the TIF Districts and in particular the Town Core. He recommended that they 33 
consider contracting for that service. 34 
 35 

VII. Consideration by the Board to ratify changes made to the FY Budget. 36 
Mr. Bohne explained that the Finance Director had been asked to make changes to the FY 15 37 
Budget prior to entering the budget into the accounting system. He requested that the Board  38 
ratify that action. 39 
 40 
The Board discussed this request and was uncomfortable to the after the fact ratification. Mr. 41 
Cushing thought that making a journal entry to make the accounts match what was voted on by 42 
the Milton residents might be a better approach. Mr. Bohne agreed to reconsider the request. 43 
 44 
 45 



 

Selectboard Minutes Page 2 of 2 June 23, 2015 
 

VIII. Warrant #25 46 
Motion: Moved by Mr. Bartlett, seconded by Mr. Cushing to approve the warrant. 47 
Vote: 4-0 (Mr. Adams had not yet joined the meeting) Motion Approved. 48 

 49 
IX. Possible/anticipated Executive session per V.S.A., Title 1, Section 313. 50 

Bartlett moved to find premature public knowledge about Human Resources would cause the 51 
Town or person to suffer a substantial disadvantage. Second by Cushing. Approved 4-0.   52 
 53 
Bartlett moved to enter into executive session to discuss Human Resources under the 54 
provisions of V.S.A. Title 1 Section 313A3. Second by Cushing. Approved 4-0. 55 
 56 
Entered Executive Session at 6:37 PM. 57 

  58 
 Adams joined during executive session. 59 
 60 
 Bartlett moved to close executive session. Second by Cushing. Approved 5-0 roll call vote. 61 
 Executive Session closed at 8:52 PM. 62 
  63 
 Bartlett moved to authorize Stuart King to discuss contract terms with Selectboard's 64 
 preferred Town Manager candidate and to notify the other Town Manager finalist of Board’s65 
 decision not to offer the position to them. Second by Adams. Approved 5-0 via roll call vote. 66 
  67 
X. Adjournment 68 

Bartlett moved to adjourn the meeting at 8:55 p.m., second by Cushing. Approved 5-0 roll call 69 
vote. 70 
 71 

 72 
Respectfully Submitted, 73 

 74 
___________________________________ Date: _______________________ 75 
John Bartlett, Selectboard Clerk 76 
 77 
Filed with Milton Town Clerk’s Office on this __________ day of __________, _____ 78 
 79 
 ATTEST: ____________________________________ Milton Assistant Town Clerk 80 

 81 



 

Selectboard Minutes Page 1 of 1           June 29, 2015 
 

Milton Special Selectboard Meeting Minutes 1 
June 29, 2015 6:00 P.M.  2 

Town Manager’s Office Conference Room 3 
       4 
Selectboard Members Present:  Darren Adams, Chair (via phone); Stuart King, Vice Chair; John Bartlett, 5 
Clerk; Kenneth Nolan, Member; John Cushing, Member 6 
 7 
Selectboard Members Not Present: None 8 

Staff Members Present: None  9 
 10 
Others Present: None 11 
 12 

I. Call to Order 13 
King called the meeting to order at 6:02 PM. Board waited for Adams to call in, nothing 14 
discussed during that period of time. 15 
 16 

II. Possible/Anticipated Executive Session per V.S.A. Title 1 Section 313  17 
Bartlett moved to find premature public knowledge about Human Resources would cause 18 
the Town or person to suffer a substantial disadvantage. Second by Nolan. Approved 4-0 19 
(Adams not connected via phone). 20 
 21 
Bartlett moved to enter into executive session to discuss Human Resources under the 22 
provisions of V.S.A. Title 1 Section 313A3. Second by Nolan. Approved 4-0.   23 
 24 
Entered into executive session at 6:07 PM, Adams joined at 6:30 PM.   25 

        Adams moved to close Executive Session at 7:50 PM. Second by Bartlett. Approved 5-0     26 
roll call vote.   27 

 28 
III. Possible Action in the Town Manager Hiring Process 29 

 30 
Bartlett moved to direct Stuart King to finalize contract with Town Manager candidate based 31 
on Selectboard's discussion and negotiations with candidate during executive session & 32 
have Town attorney review final draft of contract. Second by Adams. Approved 5-0 roll call 33 
vote. 34 

 35 
IV. Adjournment 36 

                       37 
       Bartlett moved to adjourn at 7:53 PM. Second by Cushing. Passed 5-0 roll call vote. 38 
 39 

Respectfully Submitted, 40 
 41 

___________________________________ Date: _______________________ 42 
John Bartlett, Selectboard Clerk 43 
 44 
Filed with Milton Town Clerk’s Office on this __________ day of __________, _____ 45 
 46 
 ATTEST: ____________________________________ Milton Town Clerk 47 
















	SB Agenda July 6 2015
	centre37.interimCU.srp.SLB2015-01
	PC Advisory Opinion
	boards and commissions
	fy 15 balance sheet
	rescue
	Resolution Re Expenditure of Funds
	Resolution

	Resolution Re Health Stabilization of Fund
	Resolution

	Draft Minutes of 06-15-15 SLB Meeting
	Draft Minutes of 6 23 15 SLB Meeting
	Draft Minutes of 06-29-15 SLB Meeting
	warrant

